
CITY OF ANNAPOLIS 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

January 14, 2013, 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
Call to Order Mayor Cohen 
Invocation  Alderman Pfeiffer 
Pledge of Allegiance Mayor Cohen 
Roll Call  City Clerk Watkins-Eldridge 
Approval of Agenda  
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
Swearing in of Alderman Jared Littmann, Ward 5 Mayor Cohen 
 
                                      

CITY COUNCIL CITATIONS 
Martha Wood Leadership Award Mayor Cohen 
Kids at Hope Mayor Cohen 

 
 

PETITIONS, REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
Housing Authority of the City of Annapolis (HACA) Quarterly Meeting 
Approval of Journal Proceedings Regular Meeting December 10, 2012 
  Special Meeting December 17, 2012  
Reports by Committees 
Comments by the General Public 

A person appearing before the City Council with a petition, report or communication  
shall be limited to a presentation of not more than three minutes. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
O-44-12 Lease of City Property: Boat Shows in Spring 2013 - For the purpose of 

authorizing a lease of certain municipal property located in the areas of 
Susan B. Campbell Park, Annapolis City Donner Parking Lot, Ego Alley 
Water Space, and other property and water locations as described in the 
lease to CRUISERS UNIVERSITY, INC., t/a Annapolis Spring Sailboat 
Show, for a certain period of time in April 2013, to conduct boat shows. 

 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  
and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

12/10/12 1/14/13 Available 1/14/13 3/10/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 12/10/12   

Environmental Matters 12/10/12   

Page 1



Agenda: Regular Meeting of the City Council         
Page 2 

 
LEGISLATIVE ACTIONS 

 
ORDINANCE and RESOLUTION – 1st READER 

O-1-13 Technical Corrections to the Annapolis City Code - Exempt Service – 
For the purpose of making certain technical corrections to the Annapolis City 
Code in regards to the exempt service.  

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

1/14/13   4/14/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 1/14/13   

Finance 1/14/13   

 
 
R-1-13  Filing of Grant Application with the Mass Transit Administration – For 

the purpose of authorizing the filing of an application with the Mass Transit 
Administration of the Maryland Department of Transportation for a Sections 
5303, 5304, 5307, 5309, 5310, 5311, 5316, and/or 5317 grants under the 
Federal Transit Act. 

 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

1/14/13   4/14/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Transportation 1/14/13   

Transportation Board 1/14/13   

 
R-2-13  Support for Angela Wakhweya, M.D. to Continue Her Service as the 

Anne Arundel County Health Officer – For the purpose of expressing the 
sense of the Annapolis City Council to support Angela Wakhweya, M.D. in 
continuing her service as the Anne Arundel County Health Officer. 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

1/14/13   4/14/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Housing and Human 1/14/13   

Page 2



Agenda: Regular Meeting of the City Council         
Page 3 

 

Welfare 

 
 

BUSINESS and MISCELLANEOUS 
 

1. Standing Committee assignments 
2. Appointments 

 
 

UPCOMING CITY COUNCIL EVENTS 
Work Session: Thursday, January 17, 2013, 1:30 – 4:30 p.m. City Council Chambers 
Special Meeting: Monday, January 28, 2013, 7:00 p.m. City Council Chambers 
 

Page 3



	 	 	 
Jessica Cowles  
Legislative and Policy Analyst    
City of Annapolis Office of Law  
E)   JCCowles@annapolis.gov 
P)   410‐263‐1184 
F)   410‐268‐3916 

January 9, 2013 
 
TO:  The Capital Legal Notices: legalad@capgaz.com  
FROM:  Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst 
RE:  Notice of Public Hearing 
PUBLISH:  Please publish on: Sunday, January 13, 2013 and Monday, January 14, 2013 
 
Please send bill and certificate of publication to the City of Annapolis Office of Law, 93 Main Street, 3rd 
Floor, Annapolis, MD 21401. 

 
****************************************** 

NOTICE OF ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING 
Notice is hereby given that the Annapolis City Council will hold a public hearing on Monday, January 14, 
2013 at 7:00 p.m., in City Council Chambers, 160 Duke of Gloucester Street, Annapolis, to consider: 

 
O-44-12 Lease of City Property: Boat Shows in Spring 2013 - For the purpose of authorizing a 

lease of certain municipal property located in the areas of Susan B. Campbell Park, 
Annapolis City Donner Parking Lot, Ego Alley Water Space, and other property and water 
locations as described in the lease to CRUISERS UNIVERSITY, INC., t/a Annapolis 
Spring Sailboat Show, for a certain period of time in April 2013, to conduct boat shows. 

 

The above legislation on the City Council agenda for public hearing can be viewed on the City=s website 
at: http://www.annapolis.gov/Government/Departments/LawOffice/PendingLegis.aspx  

  

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



 
                         

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 
7 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

City of Annapolis 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  O-44-12 
 

Introduced by: Mayor Cohen 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

12/10/12   03/10/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Economic Matters 12/10/12   

Environmental Matters 12/10/12   

 8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 

AN ORDINANCE concerning 
 

Lease of City Property: Boat Shows in Spring 2013 
 
FOR the purpose of authorizing a lease of certain municipal property located in the 

areas of Susan B. Campbell Park, Annapolis City Donner Parking Lot, Ego Alley 
Water Space, and Old City Recreation Center and other property and water 
locations as described in the lease to CRUISERS UNIVERSITY, INC., t/a 
Annapolis Spring Sailboat Show, in April 2013, to conduct boat shows. 

 
 
WHEREAS, CRUISERS UNIVERSITY, INC., t/a Annapolis Spring Sailboat Show, 

desires to lease certain municipal property for the purpose of conducting 
boat shows; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Annapolis City Council believes that these proposed boat shows would 

inure to the benefit of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, a lease setting forth details of the rental has been prepared and is 

considered satisfactory; and 
 
WHEREAS, Article III, Section 8 of the Charter of the City of Annapolis requires the 

passage of an ordinance to authorize the lease. 
 
NOW THEREFORE: 
  

Page 13



O-44-12 
Page 2 

 
 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 

SECTION I: BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY 
COUNCIL that the proposed lease between the City of Annapolis and CRUISERS 
UNIVERSITY, INC., t/a Annapolis Spring Sailboat Show, for the rental of certain 
municipal property in the area of Susan B. Campbell Park, Annapolis City Donner 
Parking Lot, Ego Alley Water Space, and Old City Recreation Center and other property 
and water locations from April 23, 2013 to April, 30, 2013 specifically described in the 
lease, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, more specifically 
described in the attached lease, is hereby approved and the Mayor is hereby authorized 
to execute the lease on behalf of the City of Annapolis. 
 
 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that it is expressly found by the City Council that the 
property to be leased will better serve the public need for which the property was 
acquired by stimulating local interest in the boating industry, encouraging visitors and 
residents of the City to visit the harbor and dock area, by generating tax revenues and 
rental income to the City and otherwise providing economic benefits to the City. 
 
 SECTION III:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its 
passage. 
 
  
 ADOPTED this   __________day of _________, ________. 
 
ATTEST:      THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
       BY: _____________________ 28 

29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC City Clerk       Joshua C. Cohen, MAYOR 
 
 

EXPLANATION 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 
Underlining indicates amendments. 35 

Page 14



 
LEASE 

 
Authorized by O-44-12 

 
 

This Lease is made this ______day of___________, 2012, by and between City of 
Annapolis, a municipal corporation of the State of Maryland (“Lessor”), and Cruisers University, 
Inc. trading as Annapolis Spring Sailboat Show (“Lessee”). 
 
          Article I 
 

Section 1.1. Premises and Term:  Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, for the purpose of 
holding a boat show and related educational seminars, those parcels of land and of water 
(collectively "Premises") described and designated on the plat designated as Exhibit A 
attached to and made a part of this Lease, for the periods of time indicated, subject to the 
provisions and terms of this Lease. 

 
  a.  Charter Dock Parcels 1 and 2 from Tuesday, April 23, 2013 at 5 PM through 
Tuesday, April 30, 2013 at 12 noon; 
 
  b.  State Dock Parcel from Tuesday, April 23, 2013 at 5 PM through Tuesday, April 
30, 2013 at 12 noon, shown in green on Exhibit A;  
 
  c.  Ego Alley Parcel from Tuesday, April 23, 2013 at 4 PM through Monday, April 
29, 2013 at 8 PM; 
 
  d.  Susan Campbell Park Parcel and Dock Street Parking Parcels A, B and C from 
Wednesday, April 24, 2013 at 7 AM through Tuesday, April 30, 2013 at 5 PM; 
 
  e.  Donner Parking Lot Parcel from Thursday, April 25, 2013 at 7 AM through 
Monday, April 29, 2013 at 5 PM; 
 
  The boardwalk around the Ego Alley and Susan Campbell Park Parcels shall 
remain open to the public at all times, except for brief periods during setup and breakdown 
of the event when required for public safety. 
 
         The Premises shall not be open to the public before 10 AM or after 6:30 PM on days 
and dates specified for the term of use herein. 
 

Section 1.2. Changes to Premises:  Lessee shall notify the City in writing no later than 
March 16, 2013 if it wishes to change the Premises area. The notice shall indicate with 
specificity the changes requested.  Lessor shall respond to Lessee no later than March 23, 2013 
whether it consents to the changes requested.  Changes in the Premises area shall be within 
Lessor’s sole discretion.  Should costs be incurred by Lessor as a result of any change, those 
costs shall be paid by Lessee pursuant to Section 1.5 of this Lease. 
 

Page 15



Section 1.3. Use of Premises:  Lessee is authorized to use existing and normal ingress 
to and egress from the Premises, existing and normal street and harbor lighting, and existing 
and normal police and fire protection.  Any use of facilities and services beyond what is existing 
and normal shall be invoiced by the City as specified in Section 1.3 below. 

 
Lessee shall not block access for emergency vehicles to the Susan Campbell Park 

Parcel or to the public walkway/boardwalk along the City Dock. 
 

 Lessee is authorized to construct, install, or erect booths, exhibits, chairs, tables, and 
tents in the Premises in connection with the boat show without permanently affecting the 
Premises.   Lessee shall obtain all required temporary structures permits associated with this 
boat show. 
 

Lessee, at its own expense, shall install all temporary electrical equipment, lines and 
devices required to provide power to the Premises in compliance with National Electric Code 
and subject to electrical inspection and all required permitting by the City. 

 
Lessee is prohibited from selling food, alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages on the 

Premises.  Amplified music or other amplified sound is prohibited on the Premises. 
 

Lessee shall submit to the City a diagram of its proposed use of the Premises at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the boat show and obtain final City approval of the diagram. 

 
            Section 1.4. Rent:  Rent for the various parcels shall be as follows: 
 
     Charter Dock Parcel 1:             $1,500.00 
     Charter Dock Parcel 2:             $   500.00  
     State Dock Parcel:                    $   100.00  
   Ego Alley Parcel:                           $ 2,816.50 
      Susan B. Campbell Park Parcel    $         0.00 
      Dock Street Parcel A                     $  2,000.00 
      Dock Street Parcel B                     $  2,000.00 
      Dock Street Parcel C                     $  2,000.00 
      Donner Parking Lot Parcel            $  1,254.00  
         

Section 1.5. Costs and Expenses: Lessee shall pay all rent, costs and expenses 
incurred by the City as a result of Lessee’s use of the Premises.  Expenses may include, but are 
not limited to: utilities, parking and transportation, facilities and services, police services, fire 
services and other City services.  Full cost shall be determined by the Director of Finance and 
invoiced post-event and shall be due and payable 30 days from date of invoice.  

 
Section 1.6. Payment:  Lessee shall make all payments due under this Lease by 

check, payable to the City of Annapolis. Lessee shall pay the City a monthly late fee of 1.5% 
(18% per annum) on any balance unpaid more than thirty (30) days past due. 
 
          Article II 

 
Section 2.1. Number of Days:  Lessee shall notify the City in writing no later than March 

16, 2013 should it wishes to add dates and time of use of Premises.  The notice shall indicate 

Page 16



changes in dates and times requested.  Lessor shall respond to Lessee no later than March 23, 
2013 whether it agrees.  Changes in dates or times shall be within Lessor’s sole discretion.  
Should costs be incurred by Lessor as a result of any change, those costs shall be paid by 
Lessee pursuant to Section 1.3 of this Lease. 

  
          Article III 
 

Section 3.1. Pre-Show Meetings and Inspection: Prior to the opening of each boat show, 
representatives of Lessor’s Department of Neighborhood and Environmental Programs, Police 
Department, Fire Department, Harbormaster, and Department of Public Works shall inspect the 
Premises and nearby areas with Lessee’s representative to determine compliance with City 
requirements and for determination of the condition of the Premises. Written approval by 
representatives of these departments is required before Lessee may open either boat show. 
The opening of the boat show shall not be delayed by any department whose representative is 
not present for the pre-inspection. Lessor shall not refuse permission to open either boat show 
or any part of the show under this paragraph unless a threat to health or safety has been 
identified. Lessor shall make every effort to limit that part of the show not opened in the event of 
such threat and to allow Lessee to open the closed portion of the show as soon as the threat is 
abated to Lessor’s satisfaction. All other federal, state or county permits which may be required 
shall be the responsibility of the Lessee. 

 
Section 3.2. Transportation: The Lessee shall prepare and submit a written 

Transportation Plan with a Parking Element to Lessor’s Director of Transportation.  The 
Transportation Plan shall address matters specified by the Director and shall be submitted no 
later than April 1, 2013. Except for public ways within the Premises, the Transportation Plan 
shall not provide for the closure of any street or restrict parking to those associated with the boat 
shows. Moreover in publicizing the boat shows, Lessee shall direct all persons attending the 
event to park their vehicles at satellite lots and ride the shuttle to the site of the boat shows. 
Upon receipt of the Transportation Plan, the Director shall make copies available to relevant 
agencies and to interested parties who have requested a copy. 
 
          Article IV 
 

Section 4.1. Insurance:  Lessee, at its own expense, shall obtain and keep in full force 
and effect comprehensive commercial general liability insurance of no less than Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000.00) combined single limit, bodily injury and property damage, and Eight 
Million Dollars ($8,000,000.00) umbrella policy, which shall be effective during the entire period 
of time during which the Lessee shall use or occupy the Premises or any part of the Premises. 

 
The insurance policy or policies shall specifically name the City of Annapolis, and in their 

capacity as such, the officers, agents and employees thereof, as additional insureds, and insure 
against any and all loss, costs, damages, and expenses suffered by any person or to any 
property, including property owned by Lessor, due to or alleged to be due to an act, omission or 
the negligence of Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, vendors, subtenants or contractors, 
directly or indirectly, in connection with the use of the Premises or any part of the Premises by 
Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, vendors, subtenants or contractors. 

 
Lessee’s insurer or insurers shall be authorized to write the required insurance, 

approved by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of Maryland, and subject to the approval 
of Lessor’s City Attorney. The form and substance of the Lessee’s insurance policy or policies 
shall also be subject to reasonable approval by Lessor’s City Attorney, and shall be submitted to 

Page 17



the City Attorney for such approval not less than thirty (30) days prior to Lessee's occupancy of 
the Premises. The policy or policies of insurance shall then be secured by Lessee and filed with 
the City Attorney not less than fifteen (15) days prior to Lessee's occupancy of the Premises.  
No approval shall be unreasonably withheld. 

 
The Certificate for each insurance policy shall contain a statement on its face that the 

insurer will not cancel the policy or fail to renew the policy, whether for nonpayment of premium, 
or otherwise, whether at the request of Lessee or for any other reason, except after thirty (30) 
calendar days advance written notice mailed by the insurer to Lessor’s City Attorney, and that 
such notice shall be transmitted postage prepaid, return receipt requested. 

 
The obligations of Lessee under this Article are part of but do not limit or satisfy Lessee's 

obligations under Article V. 
 
          Article V 
 

Section 5.1. Indemnity: Lessee shall forever indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
Lessor, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, suits, actions, 
judgments, and liability for loss, injury, damages and/or expenses suffered or alleged to have 
been suffered during the lease term by any person or to any property due to or alleged to be 
due to an act, omission or the negligence of Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, vendors, 
subtenants or contractors, directly or indirectly, in connection with the use and occupancy of the 
Premises or any part of the Premises, by Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, vendors, 
subtenants or contractors. 

 
Lessee shall reimburse Lessor, within thirty (30) days after demand for such 

reimbursement, for any damage done to Lessor's buildings, facilities, equipment or property 
caused by an act, omission or the negligence of Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, 
vendors, subtenants or contractors, during Lessee's use and occupancy of the Premises or any 
part of the Premises. 

 
          Article VI 
 

Section 6.1. Security: Lessee shall contract with and pay, as independent contractors, 
security guards from an agency duly licensed by the State of Maryland, in numbers sufficient to 
maintain security, peace and order at the boat shows inside the Premises during the lease term. 
 
          Article VII 
 

Section 7.1. Interior Construction: Lessee shall have the right to construct, install or erect 
seats, platforms, booths, tanks, scaffolding, rigging, floating piers, pilings, docks, catwalks, 
tents, exhibits, and any other apparatus or structure which Lessee may deem necessary or 
desirable for the purpose of presenting the boat shows.  Lessee shall have the right to erect and 
construct a temporary fence so as to enclose the Premises in such a manner as to limit entry 
onto the Premises through controlled entrances.  Such fence shall not contain barbed wire, 
razor wire or any similar materials. 

 
Section 7.2. Exterior Construction: Lessee shall erect and construct temporary wooden 

sidewalks, wherever necessary to provide for pedestrian traffic, outside of the Premises where 
the existing sidewalks are enclosed in the Premises by a temporary fence described in Section 

Page 18



7.1. All temporary sidewalks shall be handicap accessible and illuminated during hours of 
darkness and maintained by Lessee in a safe and secure condition. 

 
Section 7.3. ADA and Other Permits: Lessee hereby assumes exclusive responsibility 

for compliance with any and all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, as amended from time to time, at the Premises, during the entire time Lessee uses or 
occupies the Premises or any part of the Premises.  Subject to the inspection provisions of 
Section 3.7 of this Lease and to standard public safety and health approvals, any and all 
permits, licenses or authorizations required to be obtained from the City by Lessee during the 
term of this Lease for the purpose of constructing or erecting the temporary structures described 
in Sections 7.1 and 7.2 of this Lease or for operating the boat shows, shall be deemed granted 
and issued upon the execution of this Lease by Lessor and Lessee. All other federal, state or 
county permits, which may be required, shall be the responsibility of the Lessee. 
 
          Article VIII 
    

Section 8.1. Trash: Lessee, at its own expense, shall provide an adequate number of 
trash and recycling containers for its use within the boat show grounds during the entire use and 
occupancy period of the Premises, and shall provide for the prompt removal of all such 
containers, trash and refuse. Lessor, at its own expense, shall provide an adequate number of 
trash dumpsters outside the boat show grounds for the use of Lessee during the use and 
occupancy period and shall provide for the prompt removal of trash, refuse and recycling 
materials generated during the boat show. 
 

Section 8.2. Cleanliness: Lessee shall be responsible for keeping the Premises free of 
debris, trash and refuse, which shall be placed in dumpsters or receptacles. 

 
Section 8.3. Sanitation and Toilets: Lessee shall, at its own expense, provide adequate 

and sanitary toilet facilities throughout the Premises for use by the general public and others 
attending or participating in the boat shows, including sufficient ADA compliant sanitary toilet 
facilities. 
 
          Article IX 
 

Section.9.1.  Quiet Enjoyment:  Lessor covenants with Lessee that at all times during the 
term of this Lease, Lessee shall peacefully hold and quietly enjoy the use and occupancy of the 
Premises without any disturbance or hindrance from Lessor or from any other person claiming 
through Lessor, except that Lessor or others claiming through Lessor may enter onto the 
Premises to effect necessary repairs to their own facilities as reasonably contemplated by the 
terms of this Lease, and to assure compliance with the terms of this Lease.  Lessee shall 
cooperate with the Lessor to effect this access to the Premises. 

 
Section 9.2. Trash and Public Safety Cooperation: The parties shall cooperate with each 

other and use their best efforts to ensure that there is prompt trash removal, public safety 
protection and adequate traffic control during the designated period of use and occupancy by 
Lessee of the Premises. 
 
          Article X 
 

Page 19



Section 10.1. Condition of Premises After Show: Following the lease term, Lessee, at 
Lessee's sole expense, shall return the Premises to Lessor in the same or superior condition 
than received, natural wear and tear excepted. 

 
Section 10.2. Lessee's Equipment After Show: Prior to the expiration of the lease term, 

Lessee shall immediately remove all of its property, fixtures and chattels from the Premises. In 
the event that Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, vendors, subtenants or contractors, fail to 
remove any item of property, Lessor reserves the right to remove and store any such property 
after the expiration or termination of the lease term at Lessee's expense or as an alternative, to 
leave the property at the Premises. In either case, Lessor shall charge Lessee per diem rental 
for storage of such property. Lessor shall bear no responsibility or liability for damage to or 
expense incurred as a result of property left, removed or stored under the provisions of this 
Section. Lessee shall pay to Lessor any expenses or charges under this Section billed to 
Lessee by Lessor within thirty (30) days after delivery of any such bill by Lessor to Lessee. 

 
Section 10.3. Post-Show Inspection: Within ten (10) days following the expiration of the 

lease term, Lessee shall accompany Lessor during a tour of the Premises to determine the 
condition of the Premises. Items corrected or repaired by Lessor, deemed by Lessor to be the 
responsibility of Lessee, shall be billed by Lessor and paid by Lessee within thirty (30) days 
after receipt of such bill. 
 
          Article XI 
 

Section 11.1. Remedies: All duties, liabilities and/or obligations imposed upon or 
assumed by Lessee and Lessor by or under this Lease shall be taken or construed as 
cumulative and the mention of any specified duty, liability or obligation imposed upon or 
assumed by Lessee or Lessor under this Lease shall not be taken or construed as a limitation or 
restriction upon any or all of the other duties, liabilities, or obligations imposed upon or assumed 
by Lessee under this Lease. The remedies provided for in this Lease shall be construed to be 
cumulative and in addition to any other remedies provided in law or equity which Lessor or 
Lessee would have in any case. Lessor shall have the right to seek and obtain in any court of 
competent jurisdiction an injunction, without the necessity of posting a bond, to restrain a 
violation or alleged violation by Lessee of any term of this Lease, anything to the contrary 
notwithstanding. In no case shall a waiver by either party of the right to seek relief under this 
provision constitute a waiver of any other or further violation. The remedies provided in this 
Leaser shall not be deemed exclusive of other remedies not specified. 
 
          Article XII 
 

Section 12.1. Impossibility of Performance: If, for any reason, an unforeseen event not 
the act of Lessor occurs, including but not limited to fire, casualty, act of God, labor strike or 
other unforeseen occurrence which renders impossible the fulfillment of any rental period of this 
Lease, Lessee shall have no right to claim damages not right to claim against Lessor for 
damages, but Lessee shall not be liable for the payment of rent for said rental period.  However, 
if such impossibility relates to not more than five percent (5%) of the rental period, Base Rent, if 
determined under Section 1.3(A)(ii) of this Lease, shall be prorated to account for the number of 
scheduled hours the Show is not open to the public. 
 
          Article XIII 
 

Page 20



Section 13.1. Payment: Lessee shall make all payments due under this Lease by check, 
payable to the City of Annapolis. In addition to all other amounts due pursuant to this Lease, 
Lessee shall pay Lessor a monthly late fee of 1.5% (18% per annum) of any payment more than 
sixty (60) days past due, until paid. 
 
          Article XIV 
 

Section 14.1. Time is of the Essence: Time is of the essence in the performance of this 
Lease. The times and deadlines specified in this Lease shall not be extended for any reason, 
except as may be provided in this Lease, relating to the term of the Lease or the installation or 
removal of equipment, materials or displays from the Premises, without written consent of 
Lessor. 
 
          Article XV 
 

Section 15.1. Assignment: Lessee shall not assign, transfer, or otherwise dispose of this 
Lease without the prior written consent of Lessor, but such consent shall not be unreasonably or 
arbitrarily withheld. The foregoing shall not prevent Lessee from subleasing portions of the 
Premises to boat show exhibitors, provided the portion of the Premises subleased to any 
exhibitor does not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the total area of the Premises. 
 
          Article XVI 
 

Section 16.1. Independent Contractor:  Lessee is an independent contractor and not the 
agent or employee of Lessor.  Under no circumstances shall this Lease be considered to create 
an employee or agency relationship or a partnership or joint venture. 
 
          Article XVII 
 

Section 17.1. Liens:  Lessee hereby consents that Lessor shall have a lien upon all 
property of Lessee located from time to time upon the Premises for any and all unpaid charges 
which arise under this Lease. Lessee hereby consents to and Lessor shall have the power to 
impound and retain possession of such property until all such charges and late fees due under 
Article XIII have been paid, in full, to the satisfaction of Lessor. In the event such charges 
remain unpaid ten (10) days after the termination of this Lease, Lessor shall have the power to 
sell such property at public auction and apply the receipts from such auction to all such unpaid 
charges. 
 
          Article XVIII 
 

Section 18.1. Compliance with all Laws: Lessee shall comply with all laws, ordinances, 
and statutes applicable to the Premises or any part of the Premises, and the use and occupancy 
thereof, and to pay all taxes or charges imposed by law in connection with Lessee's use and 
occupancy of the Premises.  Lessee shall have a reasonable time to correct any violation. 
 
     Article XIX 
 

Section 20.1. Immunities: Nothing in this Lease shall be interpreted or construed to 
waive, in whole or in part, or to otherwise diminish, Lessor’s statutory, common law or other 
immunities in any action in tort, in contract or in any other form. The parties agree that if any 
duty assumed by Lessor under the terms of this Lease or any action taken by Lessor pursuant 

Page 21



to any such term is construed to waive, in whole or in part, any such immunity, then the 
immunity shall nevertheless be fully restored, and shall bind and protect the parties as a 
contractual undertaking. 
 
        Article XX 
 

Section 21.1 Authority: This Lease is authorized by Ordinance O-44-12 adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Annapolis. 
 
 In Witness Whereof, the City of Annapolis, by and through its duly authorized agent, has 
caused this Lease to be executed on its behalf, and the Lessee, Cruiser University, Inc. trading 
as Annapolis Spring Sailboat Show and Cruiser University, Inc. trading as Annapolis Spring 
Sailboat Show, has duly executed this Lease on the date first written above. 
 
Attest:       City of Annapolis   
 
 
 
_______________________________ By: _______________________________ 
Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC        Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor     (Seal)              
City Clerk          
 
 
 
 
       Cruisers University, Inc. trading as         
Annapolis Spring Sailboat Show 
 
 
 
_______________________________ By:  ______________________________ 
Witness        C.E. Hartman, President    (Seal)            
                
 
 
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency: 
 
 
 
__________________________________  
Karen M. Hardwck, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Exhibit A

  
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 23



O-44-12 
Page 12 

 

Staff Paper 
 

O-44-12 - Lease of City Property: Boat Shows in Spring 2013 
 

Pursuant to Article II, Section 8 of the Annapolis City Charter, it is necessary for the City 
Council to enact an ordinance to authorize a lease of City property.  Ordinance O-44-12 
would authorize a lease of City property for Spring Boat Shows from April 23, 2013 to 
April 30, 2013. Areas of the City property to be leased are at Susan B. Campbell Park, 
Annapolis City Donner Parking Lot, Ego Alley Water Space, Charter Dock, Dock Street, 
and State Dock.  
 
The lease would be executed between the City of Annapolis and CRUISERS 
UNIVERSITY, INC., t/a Annapolis Spring Sailboat Show. Under the terms of the lease, 
the rent for the various parcels shall be: 
 
  Charter Dock Parcel 1:             $1,500.00 
 Charter Dock Parcel 2:             $   500.00 
 State Dock Parcel:                    $   100.00 
 Ego Alley Parcel:                           $  2,816.50 
 Susan B. Campbell Park Parcel    $         0.00 
 Dock Street Parcel A                     $  2,000.00 
 Dock Street Parcel B                     $  2,000.00 
 Dock Street Parcel C                     $  2,000.00 
 Donner Parking Lot Parcel            $  1,254.00  
      
The Lessee would be required to prepare and submit a transportation plan that includes 
a parking element to the City of Annapolis Department of Transportation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Carol Richardson, Legislative and Policy Analyst, City of Annapolis Office 
of Law, (410) 263-1184, cdrichardson@annapolis.gov. 
 

 

Page 24

mailto:cdrichardson@annapolis.gov


FISCAL IMPACT NOTE   
 

Legislation No: O-44-12   First Reader Date: 12-10-12 
Note Date:    1-11-13 

 
Legislation Title:  Lease of City Property:  Boat Shows in Spring 2013 

 
 

Description:  For the purpose of authorizing a lease of certain municipal property located 
in the areas of Susan B. Campbell Park, Annapolis City Donner Parking Lot, Ego Alley 
Water Space, and Old City Recreation Center and other property and water locations as 
described in the lease to CRUISERS UNIVERSITY, INC., t/a Annapolis Spring Sailboat 
Show, in APRIL 2013, to conduct boat shows. 
 
Analysis of Fiscal Impact:   
 
This legislation describes and authorizes an attached lease with Lessee, CRUISERS 
UNIVERSITY, INC., that will allow for the rental of certain City property and water 
locations from April 23, 2013 to April 30, 2013.  The lease is expected to stimulate the 
boating industry and encourage visitors to the area, thereby generating tax revenue, 
rental income, and economic benefit to the City.  
 
The lease provides that the Lessee will pay rent totaling $12,175.50 for use of the named 
parcels.  Lessee will obtain all required permits which are priced to cover the cost of 
inspections.  The City will be reimbursed for costs and services including utilities, parking 
and transportation, facilities and services, police services, and fire services.   Permits and 
inspections, and costs of City services to be invoiced will have no fiscal impact. 
 
The lease provides that the City, at its own expense, will provide an adequate number of 
dumpsters outside the boat show grounds for the use of the Lessee during the period and 
shall provide for the prompt removal of trash, refuse and recycling materials generated 
during the show. No estimate of the cost to the City is available at this time, however, the 
City’s cost for refuse removal for the fall boat shows was $12,348.30. 
 
The City will experience lost parking meter revenue estimated at $22,753 and lost docking 
revenue estimated at $2,000 due to the areas to be leased. 
 
The direct negative fiscal impact to the City is $12,577.50 not including the cost of 
dumpsters outside the rented premises.              
 
 

Page 25



Page 1 

Mayor Cohen’s Proposed Amendments to O-44-12 
Lease of City Property: Boat Shows in Spring 2013 

 
 

Amendment #1 
Page 1, Line 14 and Page 2, Line 4 
Strike “B.” 
 
Amendment #2 
Substitute the lease attached to the first reader O-44-12 and replace with the following: 
Note: new lease language is in RED and deletions are in strikethrough. 

 
LEASE 

 
Authorized by O-44-12 

 
 

This Lease is made this ______day of___________, 2013, by and between City of 
Annapolis, a municipal corporation of the State of Maryland (“Lessor”), and Cruisers University, 
Inc. trading as Annapolis Spring Sailboat Show (“Lessee”). 
 
          Article I 
 

Section 1.1. Premises and Term:  Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, for the purpose of 
holding a boat show and related educational seminars, those parcels of land and of water 
(collectively "Premises") described and designated on the plat designated as Exhibit A 
attached to and made a part of this Lease, for the periods of time indicated, subject to the 
provisions and terms of this Lease. 

 
  a.  Charter Dock Parcels 1 and 2 from Tuesday, April 23, 2013 at 5 PM through 
Tuesday, April 30, 2013 at 12 noon; 
 
  b.  State Dock Parcel from Tuesday, April 23, 2013 at 5 PM through Tuesday, April 
30, 2013 at 12 noon, shown in green on Exhibit A;  
 
  c.  Ego Alley Parcel from Tuesday, April 23, 2013 at 4 PM through Monday, April 
29, 2013 at 8 PM; 
 
  d.  Susan Campbell Park Parcel and Dock Street Parking Parcels A, B and C from 
Wednesday, April 24, 2013 at 7 AM through Tuesday, April 30, 2013 at 5 PM; 
 
  e.  Donner Parking Lot Parcel from Thursday, April 25, 2013 at 7 AM through 
Monday, April 29, 2013 at 5 PM; 
 
  f.  Old Rec Center and Old Rec Center Parking Lot, 9 St. Mary’s Street, First Floor, 
from April 22, 2013 at 8:00 AM through May 1, 2013 at 6:00 PM.   
 

Page 26



O-44-12 
Page 2 

  The boardwalk around the Ego Alley and Susan Campbell Park Parcels shall 
remain open to the public at all times, except for brief periods during setup and breakdown 
of the event when required for public safety. 
 
         The Premises shall not be open to the public before 10 AM or after 6:30 PM on days 
and dates specified for the term of use herein. 
 

Section 1.2. Changes to Premises:  Lessee shall notify the City in writing no later than 
March 16, 2013 if it wishes to change the Premises area. The notice shall indicate with 
specificity the changes requested.  Lessor shall respond to Lessee no later than March 23, 2013 
whether it consents to the changes requested.  Changes in the Premises area shall be within 
Lessor’s sole discretion.  Should costs be incurred by Lessor as a result of any change, those 
costs shall be paid by Lessee pursuant to Section 1.5 of this Lease. 
 
  Section 1.3. Use of Premises:  Lessee is authorized to use existing and normal ingress 
to and egress from the Premises, existing and normal street and harbor lighting, and existing 
and normal police and fire protection.  Any use of facilities and services beyond what is existing 
and normal shall be invoiced by the City as specified in Section 1.3 below.   
 
  Use of the Old Rec Center and Old Rec Center Parking Lot shall be for 
administrative and educational seminar purposes only.  Lessee may sell non-alcoholic 
beverages inside the Old Rec Center during hours of daily operation exclusively to 
seminar participants and others conducting administrative business inside the Old Rec 
Center). 

 
Lessee shall not block access for emergency vehicles to the Susan Campbell Park 

Parcel or to the public walkway/boardwalk along the City Dock. 
 

 Lessee is authorized to construct, install, or erect booths, exhibits, chairs, tables, and 
tents in the Premises in connection with the boat show without permanently affecting the 
Premises.   Lessee shall obtain all required temporary structures permits associated with this 
boat show. 
 

Lessee, at its own expense, shall install all temporary electrical equipment, lines and 
devices required to provide power to the Premises in compliance with National Electric Code 
and subject to electrical inspection and all required permitting by the City. 

 
Lessee is prohibited from selling food, alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages on the 

Premises.  Amplified music or other amplified sound is prohibited on the Premises. 
 

Lessee shall submit to the City a diagram of its proposed use of the Premises at least 
thirty (30) days prior to the boat show and obtain final City approval of the diagram. 

 
Section 1.5.  Repair of Premises:  Lessee shall be responsible for making repairs to the 

Old Rec Center which Lessor’s Department of Neighborhood and Environmental Programs 
(“DNEP”) determines are necessary to use the first floor of the structure for the purposes stated 
in this Lease.  DNEP shall advise Lessee of each repair that shall be made.   

 

Page 27



O-44-12 
Page 3 

Lessee shall not be required to spend more than $13,175.00 for such repairs.  Lessee 
shall make payment for such repairs directly to its contractor.    
 

Lessee shall hire a licensed contractor in good standing with the State of Maryland to 
make such repairs.  If the contractor hires subcontractors, all subcontractors shall be licensed 
and in good standing with the State of Maryland.     

 
Lessee shall obtain all permits required by Lessee for such repairs.  Lessee shall not be 

required to pay permit application fees.   
 
Lessee shall ensure that its contractor is insured in amounts that are sufficient to protect 

the City and its interest in the Old Rec Center from damage to property and from injury to 
person occurring as a result of the acts or omissions of the contractor and any subcontractors, 
and that the contractor names the City of Annapolis, and in their capacity as such, the officers, 
agents and employees thereof, as insureds on its commercial general liability insurance policy.  
Lessee shall ensure that all subcontractors adhere to these same insurance requirements.     

 
Lessee shall ensure that all contractors and subcontractors perform repairs in a 

satisfactory, workmanlike and professional manner.   
 
Lessee shall ensure that no debris or trash resulting from repairs is left in the Old Rec 

Center. 
 
 Lessee shall ultimately be responsible for property damage or personal injury caused by 

the acts or omissions of its contractor and any subcontractors.   
 
All repairs are subject to the final approval of DNEP.  
 

            Section 1.4. Rent:  Rent for the various parcels constituting the premises shall 
be as follows: the difference between $13,175.00 and the amount which Lessee actually 
spends on such repairs.  Lessee shall document the difference to Lessor and pay the difference 
to Lessor as rent for the Premises within 15 days after the date Lessor gives final approval to 
such repairs.  
 
     Charter Dock Parcel 1:             $1,500.00 
     Charter Dock Parcel 2:             $   500.00  
     State Dock Parcel:                    $   100.00  
   Ego Alley Parcel:                           $ 2,816.50 
      Susan B. Campbell Park Parcel    $         0.00 
      Dock Street Parcel A                     $  2,000.00 
      Dock Street Parcel B                     $  2,000.00 
      Dock Street Parcel C                     $  2,000.00 
      Donner Parking Lot Parcel            $  1,254.00  
         

Section 1.5. Costs and Expenses: Lessee shall pay all rent, costs and expenses 
incurred by the City as a result of Lessee’s use of the Premises.  Expenses may include, but are 
not limited to: utilities, parking and transportation, facilities and services, police services, fire 
services and other City services.  Full cost shall be determined by the Director of Finance and 
invoiced post-event and shall be due and payable 30 days from date of invoice.  

Page 28



O-44-12 
Page 4 

 
Section 1.6. Payment:  Lessee shall make all payments due under this Lease by 

check, payable to the City of Annapolis. Lessee shall pay the City a monthly late fee of 1.5% 
(18% per annum) on any balance unpaid more than thirty (30) days past due. 
 
          Article II 

 
Section 2.1. Number of Days:  Lessee shall notify the City in writing no later than March 

16, 2013 should it wishes to add dates and time of use of Premises.  The notice shall indicate 
changes in dates and times requested.  Lessor shall respond to Lessee no later than March 23, 
2013 whether it agrees.  Changes in dates or times shall be within Lessor’s sole discretion.  
Should costs be incurred by Lessor as a result of any change, those costs shall be paid by 
Lessee pursuant to Section 1.3 of this Lease. 

  
          Article III 
 

Section 3.1. Pre-Show Meetings and Inspection: Prior to the opening of each boat show, 
representatives of Lessor’s Department of Neighborhood and Environmental Programs, Police 
Department, Fire Department, Harbormaster, and Department of Public Works shall inspect the 
Premises and nearby areas with Lessee’s representative to determine compliance with City 
requirements and for determination of the condition of the Premises. Written approval by 
representatives of these departments is required before Lessee may open either boat show. 
The opening of the boat show shall not be delayed by any department whose representative is 
not present for the pre-inspection. Lessor shall not refuse permission to open either boat show 
or any part of the show under this paragraph unless a threat to health or safety has been 
identified. Lessor shall make every effort to limit that part of the show not opened in the event of 
such threat and to allow Lessee to open the closed portion of the show as soon as the threat is 
abated to Lessor’s satisfaction. All other federal, state or county permits which may be required 
shall be the responsibility of the Lessee. 

 
Section 3.2. Transportation: The Lessee shall prepare and submit a written 

Transportation Plan with a Parking Element to Lessor’s Director of Transportation.  The 
Transportation Plan shall address matters specified by the Director and shall be submitted no 
later than April 1, 2013. Except for public ways within the Premises, the Transportation Plan 
shall not provide for the closure of any street or restrict parking to those associated with the boat 
shows. Moreover in publicizing the boat shows, Lessee shall direct all persons attending the 
event to park their vehicles at satellite lots and ride the shuttle to the site of the boat shows. 
Upon receipt of the Transportation Plan, the Director shall make copies available to relevant 
agencies and to interested parties who have requested a copy. 
 
          Article IV 
 

Section 4.1. Insurance:  Lessee, at its own expense, shall obtain and keep in full force 
and effect comprehensive commercial general liability insurance of no less than Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000.00) combined single limit, bodily injury and property damage, and Eight 
Million Dollars ($8,000,000.00) umbrella policy, which shall be effective during the entire period 
of time during which the Lessee shall use or occupy the Premises or any part of the Premises. 

 
The insurance policy or policies shall specifically name the City of Annapolis, and in their 

capacity as such, the officers, agents and employees thereof, as additional insureds, and insure 
against any and all loss, costs, damages, and expenses suffered by any person or to any 

Page 29



O-44-12 
Page 5 

property, including property owned by Lessor, due to or alleged to be due to an act, omission or 
the negligence of Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, vendors, subtenants or contractors, 
directly or indirectly, in connection with the use of the Premises or any part of the Premises by 
Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, vendors, subtenants or contractors. 

 
Lessee’s insurer or insurers shall be authorized to write the required insurance, 

approved by the Insurance Commissioner of the State of Maryland, and subject to the approval 
of Lessor’s City Attorney. The form and substance of the Lessee’s insurance policy or policies 
shall also be subject to reasonable approval by Lessor’s City Attorney, and shall be submitted to 
the City Attorney for such approval not less than thirty (30) days prior to Lessee's occupancy of 
the Premises. The policy or policies of insurance shall then be secured by Lessee and filed with 
the City Attorney not less than fifteen (15) days prior to Lessee's occupancy of the Premises.  
No approval shall be unreasonably withheld. 

 
The Certificate for each insurance policy shall contain a statement on its face that the 

insurer will not cancel the policy or fail to renew the policy, whether for nonpayment of premium, 
or otherwise, whether at the request of Lessee or for any other reason, except after thirty (30) 
calendar days advance written notice mailed by the insurer to Lessor’s City Attorney, and that 
such notice shall be transmitted postage prepaid, return receipt requested. 

 
The obligations of Lessee under this Article are part of but do not limit or satisfy Lessee's 

obligations under Article V. 
 
          Article V 
 

Section 5.1. Indemnity: Lessee shall forever indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
Lessor, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, suits, actions, 
judgments, and liability for loss, injury, damages and/or expenses suffered or alleged to have 
been suffered during the lease term by any person or to any property due to or alleged to be 
due to an act, omission or the negligence of Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, vendors, 
subtenants or contractors, directly or indirectly, in connection with the use and occupancy of the 
Premises or any part of the Premises, by Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, vendors, 
subtenants or contractors. 

 
Lessee shall reimburse Lessor, within thirty (30) days after demand for such 

reimbursement, for any damage done to Lessor's buildings, facilities, equipment or property 
caused by an act, omission or the negligence of Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, 
vendors, subtenants or contractors, during Lessee's use and occupancy of the Premises or any 
part of the Premises. 

 
          Article VI 
 

Section 6.1. Security: Lessee shall contract with and pay, as independent contractors, 
security guards from an agency duly licensed by the State of Maryland, in numbers sufficient to 
maintain security, peace and order at the boat shows inside the Premises during the lease term. 
 
          Article VII 
 

Section 7.1. Interior Construction: Lessee shall have the right to construct, install or erect 
seats, platforms, booths, tanks, scaffolding, rigging, floating piers, pilings, docks, catwalks, 
tents, exhibits, and any other apparatus or structure which Lessee may deem necessary or 

Page 30



O-44-12 
Page 6 

desirable for the purpose of presenting the boat shows.  Lessee shall have the right to erect and 
construct a temporary fence so as to enclose the Premises in such a manner as to limit entry 
onto the Premises through controlled entrances.  Such fence shall not contain barbed wire, 
razor wire or any similar materials. 

 
Section 7.2. Exterior Construction: Lessee shall erect and construct temporary wooden 

sidewalks, wherever necessary to provide for pedestrian traffic, outside of the Premises where 
the existing sidewalks are enclosed in the Premises by a temporary fence described in Section 
7.1. All temporary sidewalks shall be handicap accessible and illuminated during hours of 
darkness and maintained by Lessee in a safe and secure condition. 

 
Section 7.3. ADA and Other Permits: Lessee hereby assumes exclusive responsibility 

for compliance with any and all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990, as amended from time to time, at the Premises, during the entire time Lessee uses or 
occupies the Premises or any part of the Premises.  Subject to the inspection provisions of 
Section 3.7 of this Lease and to standard public safety and health approvals, any and all 
permits, licenses or authorizations required to be obtained from the City by Lessee during the 
term of this Lease for the purpose of constructing or erecting the temporary structures described 
in Sections 7.1 and 7.2 of this Lease or for operating the boat shows, shall be deemed granted 
and issued upon the execution of this Lease by Lessor and Lessee. All other federal, state or 
county permits, which may be required, shall be the responsibility of the Lessee. 
 
          Article VIII 
    

Section 8.1. Trash: Lessee, at its own expense, shall provide an adequate number of 
trash and recycling containers for its use within the boat show grounds during the entire use and 
occupancy period of the Premises, and shall provide for the prompt removal of all such 
containers, trash and refuse. Lessor, at its own expense, shall provide an adequate number of 
trash dumpsters outside the boat show grounds for the use of Lessee during the use and 
occupancy period and shall provide for the prompt removal of trash, refuse and recycling 
materials generated during the boat show. 
 

Section 8.2. Cleanliness: Lessee shall be responsible for keeping the Premises free of 
debris, trash and refuse, which shall be placed in dumpsters or receptacles. 

 
Section 8.3. Sanitation and Toilets: Lessee shall, at its own expense, provide adequate 

and sanitary toilet facilities throughout the Premises for use by the general public and others 
attending or participating in the boat shows, including sufficient ADA compliant sanitary toilet 
facilities. 
 
          Article IX 
 

Section.9.1.  Quiet Enjoyment:  Lessor covenants with Lessee that at all times during the 
term of this Lease, Lessee shall peacefully hold and quietly enjoy the use and occupancy of the 
Premises without any disturbance or hindrance from Lessor or from any other person claiming 
through Lessor, except that Lessor or others claiming through Lessor may enter onto the 
Premises to effect necessary repairs to their own facilities as reasonably contemplated by the 
terms of this Lease, and to assure compliance with the terms of this Lease.  Lessee shall 
cooperate with the Lessor to effect this access to the Premises. 

 

Page 31



O-44-12 
Page 7 

Section 9.2. Trash and Public Safety Cooperation: The parties shall cooperate with each 
other and use their best efforts to ensure that there is prompt trash removal, public safety 
protection and adequate traffic control during the designated period of use and occupancy by 
Lessee of the Premises. 
 
          Article X 
 

Section 10.1. Condition of Premises After Show: Following the lease term, Lessee, at 
Lessee's sole expense, shall return the Premises to Lessor in the same or superior condition 
than received, natural wear and tear excepted. 

 
Section 10.2. Lessee's Equipment After Show: Prior to the expiration of the lease term, 

Lessee shall immediately remove all of its property, fixtures and chattels from the Premises. In 
the event that Lessee, its officers, agents, employees, vendors, subtenants or contractors, fail to 
remove any item of property, Lessor reserves the right to remove and store any such property 
after the expiration or termination of the lease term at Lessee's expense or as an alternative, to 
leave the property at the Premises. In either case, Lessor shall charge Lessee per diem rental 
for storage of such property. Lessor shall bear no responsibility or liability for damage to or 
expense incurred as a result of property left, removed or stored under the provisions of this 
Section. Lessee shall pay to Lessor any expenses or charges under this Section billed to 
Lessee by Lessor within thirty (30) days after delivery of any such bill by Lessor to Lessee. 

 
Section 10.3. Post-Show Inspection: Within ten (10) days following the expiration of the 

lease term, Lessee shall accompany Lessor during a tour of the Premises to determine the 
condition of the Premises. Items corrected or repaired by Lessor, deemed by Lessor to be the 
responsibility of Lessee, shall be billed by Lessor and paid by Lessee within thirty (30) days 
after receipt of such bill. 
 
          Article XI 
 

Section 11.1. Remedies: All duties, liabilities and/or obligations imposed upon or 
assumed by Lessee and Lessor by or under this Lease shall be taken or construed as 
cumulative and the mention of any specified duty, liability or obligation imposed upon or 
assumed by Lessee or Lessor under this Lease shall not be taken or construed as a limitation or 
restriction upon any or all of the other duties, liabilities, or obligations imposed upon or assumed 
by Lessee under this Lease. The remedies provided for in this Lease shall be construed to be 
cumulative and in addition to any other remedies provided in law or equity which Lessor or 
Lessee would have in any case. Lessor shall have the right to seek and obtain in any court of 
competent jurisdiction an injunction, without the necessity of posting a bond, to restrain a 
violation or alleged violation by Lessee of any term of this Lease, anything to the contrary 
notwithstanding. In no case shall a waiver by either party of the right to seek relief under this 
provision constitute a waiver of any other or further violation. The remedies provided in this 
Leaser shall not be deemed exclusive of other remedies not specified. 
 
          Article XII 
 

Section 12.1. Impossibility of Performance: If, for any reason, an unforeseen event not 
the act of Lessor occurs, including but not limited to fire, casualty, act of God, labor strike or 
other unforeseen occurrence which renders impossible the fulfillment of any rental period of this 
Lease, Lessee shall have no right to claim damages not right to claim against Lessor for 
damages, but Lessee shall not be liable for the payment of rent for said rental period.  However, 

Page 32



O-44-12 
Page 8 

if such impossibility relates to not more than five percent (5%) of the rental period, Base Rent, if 
determined under Section 1.3(A)(ii) of this Lease, shall be prorated to account for the number of 
scheduled hours the Show is not open to the public. 
 
          Article XIII 
 

Section 13.1. Payment: Lessee shall make all payments due under this Lease by check, 
payable to the City of Annapolis. In addition to all other amounts due pursuant to this Lease, 
Lessee shall pay Lessor a monthly late fee of 1.5% (18% per annum) of any payment more than 
sixty (60) days past due, until paid. 
 
          Article XIV 
 

Section 14.1. Time is of the Essence: Time is of the essence in the performance of this 
Lease. The times and deadlines specified in this Lease shall not be extended for any reason, 
except as may be provided in this Lease, relating to the term of the Lease or the installation or 
removal of equipment, materials or displays from the Premises, without written consent of 
Lessor. 
 
          Article XV 
 

Section 15.1. Assignment: Lessee shall not assign, transfer, or otherwise dispose of this 
Lease without the prior written consent of Lessor, but such consent shall not be unreasonably or 
arbitrarily withheld. The foregoing shall not prevent Lessee from subleasing portions of the 
Premises to boat show exhibitors, provided the portion of the Premises subleased to any 
exhibitor does not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the total area of the Premises. 
 
          Article XVI 
 

Section 16.1. Independent Contractor:  Lessee is an independent contractor and not the 
agent or employee of Lessor.  Under no circumstances shall this Lease be considered to create 
an employee or agency relationship or a partnership or joint venture. 
 
          Article XVII 
 

Section 17.1. Liens:  Lessee hereby consents that Lessor shall have a lien upon all 
property of Lessee located from time to time upon the Premises for any and all unpaid charges 
which arise under this Lease. Lessee hereby consents to and Lessor shall have the power to 
impound and retain possession of such property until all such charges and late fees due under 
Article XIII have been paid, in full, to the satisfaction of Lessor. In the event such charges 
remain unpaid ten (10) days after the termination of this Lease, Lessor shall have the power to 
sell such property at public auction and apply the receipts from such auction to all such unpaid 
charges. 
 
          Article XVIII 
 

Section 18.1. Compliance with all Laws: Lessee shall comply with all laws, ordinances, 
and statutes applicable to the Premises or any part of the Premises, and the use and occupancy 
thereof, and to pay all taxes or charges imposed by law in connection with Lessee's use and 
occupancy of the Premises.  Lessee shall have a reasonable time to correct any violation. 
 

Page 33



O-44-12 
Page 9 

     Article XIX 
 

Section 20.1. Immunities: Nothing in this Lease shall be interpreted or construed to 
waive, in whole or in part, or to otherwise diminish, Lessor’s statutory, common law or other 
immunities in any action in tort, in contract or in any other form. The parties agree that if any 
duty assumed by Lessor under the terms of this Lease or any action taken by Lessor pursuant 
to any such term is construed to waive, in whole or in part, any such immunity, then the 
immunity shall nevertheless be fully restored, and shall bind and protect the parties as a 
contractual undertaking. 
 
        Article XX 
 

Section 21.1 Authority: This Lease is authorized by Ordinance O-44-12 adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Annapolis. 
 
 In Witness Whereof, the City of Annapolis, by and through its duly authorized agent, has 
caused this Lease to be executed on its behalf, and the Lessee, Cruiser University, Inc. trading 
as Annapolis Spring Sailboat Show and Cruiser University, Inc. trading as Annapolis Spring 
Sailboat Show, has duly executed this Lease on the date first written above. 
 
Attest:       City of Annapolis   
 
 
 
_______________________________ By: _______________________________ 
Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC        Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor     (Seal)              
City Clerk          
 
 
 
 
       Cruisers University, Inc. trading as         
Annapolis Spring Sailboat Show 
 
 
 
_______________________________ By:  ______________________________ 
Witness        C.E. Hartman, President    (Seal)            
                
 
 
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency: 
 
 
 
__________________________________  
Karen M. Hardwck, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



O-44-12 
Page 10 

Exhibit A

  
 
 
 

 
  

 

Page 35



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

  3 

Ordinance No. O-1-13 4 
 5 

Sponsors: Mayor Cohen, Alderwoman Finlayson, Alderman Arnett 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

1/14/13   4/14/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Rules and City Gov’t 1/14/13   

Finance 1/14/13   

 8 
A ORDINANCE concerning 9 

Technical Corrections to the Annapolis City Code - Exempt Service 10 

FOR the purpose of making certain technical corrections to the Annapolis City Code in 11 
regards to the exempt service.  12 

BY    making technical amendments regarding certain exempt service positions in order to 13 
reflect the original intent of Ordinance No. O-10-12 Amended, which repealed and re-14 
enacted with amendments the following portions of the Code of the City of Annapolis, 15 
2012 Edition: 16 

 Section 3.08.010  17 

Section 3.08.030 18 

 19 

WHEREAS, Sections 3.08.010 and 3.08.030 of the Code were amended pursuant to 20 
Ordinance No. O-10-12 Amended, which was adopted by the Annapolis City 21 
Council on June 4, 2012; 22 

WHEREAS,  pursuant to Ordinance No. O-10-12 Amended, certain positions were added to 23 
exempt service and certain positions were eliminated from exempt service;  24 

WHEREAS, certain technical amendments are necessary to effectuate the original purpose of 25 
Ordinance O-10-12 Amended. 26 

 27 
 28 
 29 
 SECTION I: BE IT ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY  30 
COUNCIL that the Code of the City of Annapolis shall be amended to read as follows: 31 
 32 

Page 36



O-1-13 
Page 2 

CHAPTER 3.08 – EXEMPT SERVICE 1 
 2 
3.08.010 - Positions included. 3 
The exempt service includes:  4 
1.   All the elected officials; 5 
2.   All department directors; 6 
3.   City Manager; 7 
4.   Communications Officer; 8 
5.   City Attorney; 9 
6.   Assistant City Attorney; 10 
7.   Community Relations Specialist; 11 
8.  Human Services Officer and Ombudsman; 12 
9.    Administrative Assistant; 13 
10.  Assistant City Manager; 14 
11.  Public Information Officer and Quartermaster 15 
12.  Executive Office Associate; 16 
13.  Recruitment/[EEO] EMPLOYEE RELATIONS Administrator; 17 
14.   Deputy Fire Chiefs; and 18 
15.   Police Major and Captains. 19 
 20 
3.08.030 - Salary. 21 
A. 1.  For purposes of setting annual salaries, the following positions in the exempt service 22 
are assigned grades in the City's pay plan as indicated:  23 

Position Grade 
Executive Office Associate  A10 
Recruitment/[EEO] EMPLOYEE RELATIONS Administrator A15 
Communications Officer A18 
Deputy Fire Chief F18 
Human Resources Director A20 
Director of Transportation A20 
[Director of Economic Affairs] [A20] 
Director of Neighborhood and Environmental Programs A20 
[Central Services Officer] [A20] 
Director of Recreation and Parks A20 
City Attorney A20 
Assistant City Attorney A18 
Director of Finance A20 
Director of Planning  A20 
Human Services Officer and Ombudsman A18 
[Development/Events Specialist] [A12] 
Community Relations Specialist A12 
[Boards and Commissions/Council Associate] [A10] 
Administrative Assistant A8 
Assistant City Manager A14 
Public Information Officer and Quartermaster A12 

Page 37



O-1-13 
Page 3 

 1 
2.  The salary of the City Manager shall be proposed and approved by the council at the 2 

time of the City Manager’s confirmation hearing.  3 
 4 
B. Salary raises: 5 
1.  Shall be justified by either satisfactory or above satisfactory performance reviews by the 6 
Mayor and shall be entirely at the Mayor's discretion, with the exception of those positions listed 7 
in subsection (B)(2) of this section;  8 
2.  Shall be at the discretion of the Department Director for the following positions: 9 

i.  Deputy Fire Chiefs, 10 
ii. Police Captains, 11 
iii.  Police Major, 12 
iv.  Recruitment/Employee Relations Administrator, 13 
v.  Assistant City Attorney[.], 14 
vi.  EXECUTIVE OFFICE ASSICIATE, 15 
vii.  COMMUNICATIONS OFFICER, 16 
viii.  HUMAN SERVICES OFFICER AND OMBUDSMAN, 17 
ix.  COMMUNITY RELATIONS SPECIALIST 18 
x.  ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT, 19 
xi.  ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER, 20 
xii.  PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER AND QUARTERMASTER. 21 

3.  Shall not be awarded to an individual more frequently than once a year; 22 
4.  Shall not be for an amount exceeding one pay step in the grade range for the position as set 23 
in subsection (A)(1) of this section;  24 
5.  Shall not cause an individual's salary to exceed the maximum salary of the assigned grade. 25 
 26 
C. Longevity salary increases awarded to civil service employees shall not be a benefit of 27 
the exempt service. 28 
 29 
D. A City employee appointed to a position specified in subsection (A)(1) of this section 30 
shall be assigned to a salary in the new pay grade which is at a minimum five percent higher 31 
than the employee's salary prior to promotion or shall be assigned to the minimum of the new 32 
grade, whichever is higher. In no case shall the new salary exceed the maximum salary of the 33 
new grade.  34 
 35 
E. For positions other than those specified in subsection (B)(2) of this section, the Mayor 36 
may make an initial appointment at a salary greater than the first step of the assigned grade. 37 
The appointment and initial salary is subject to confirmation by the City Council. For those 38 
positions specified in subsection (B)(2) of this section, appointments made by Department 39 
Director do not require City Council approval and initial appointments may be made at a salary 40 
greater than the first step of the assigned grade subject to the availability of funding.  41 
 42 
F. The Mayor shall report to the City Council on an annual basis the salaries of all positions 43 
listed in subsection A of this section, and all increases in salary awarded since the prior report.  44 

Fire Chief F20 
Police Chief P20 
Police Major P18 
Police Captain P17 
Director of Public Works A20 

Page 38



O-1-13 
Page 4 

 1 

 SECTION II:  AND BE IT FURTHER ESTABLISHED AND ORDAINED BY THE 2 
ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that this Ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage. 3 
 4 

ADOPTED this _______ day of _________, __________. 5 
 6 
 7 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 8 
 9 

EXPLANATION 10 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 11 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 12 
Underlining indicates amendments.  13 

Page 39



O-1-13 
Page 5 

 

 

Policy Report 
 

Ordinance O-1-13 
 

Technical Corrections - Exempt Service 
 
The proposed ordinance would make certain technical corrections to Sections 
3.08.010 and 3.08.030 to the Annapolis City Code, 2012 Edition. These technical 
corrections are necessary to ensure that the Code reflects the original intent of 
Ordinance No. O-10-12 Amended, which was adopted by the Annapolis City 
Council on June 4, 2012.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of 
Annapolis Office of Law at 410.263.1184 or JCCowles@annapolis.gov. 
 

Page 40



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 
Resolution No. R-1-13 4 

 5 
Introduced by: Alderman Pfeiffer 6 

 7 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 

Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  
and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

1/14/13   4/14/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Transportation 1/14/13   

Transportation Board 1/14/13   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 
 10 

Filing of Grant Application with the Mass Transit Administration 11 
 12 

FOR the purpose of authorizing the filing of an application with the Mass Transit Administration of 13 
the Maryland Department of Transportation for a Sections 5303, 5304, 5307, 5309, 5310, 14 
5311, 5316, and/or 5317 grants under the Federal Transit Act. 15 

 16 
WHEREAS, the Mass Transit Administration is the designated recipient in Maryland for grants 17 

under the Federal Transit Act; and 18 
 19 
WHEREAS, the Administrator of the Mass Transit Administration of the Maryland Department 20 

of Transportation is authorized to make grants to counties and to local 21 
governments for a mass transportation program of projects; and 22 

 23 
WHEREAS, the contract for financial assistance will impose certain obligations upon the 24 

applicant, including the provision by it of the local share of the project costs in the 25 
program; and 26 

 27 
WHEREAS, it is required by the United States Department of Transportation in accordance 28 

with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 that, in connection 29 
with the filing of an application for assistance under the Federal Transit Act, the 30 
applicant give an assurance that it will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 31 
of 1964 and the United States Department of Transportation requirements 32 
thereunder; and 33 

 34 
WHEREAS, it is the goal of the applicant that minority business enterprise be utilized to the 35 

fullest extent possible in connection with this project, and that definite procedures 36 
shall be established and administered to ensure that minority business shall have 37 
the maximum construction contracts, supplies, equipment contracts, or consultant 38 
and other services. 39 

Page 41



R-1-13  
Page 2

 
 1 
 2 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the filing of the 3 
application referred to above is hereby endorsed. 4 
 5 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the City Council 6 
hereby endorses this resolution, thereby indicating approval thereof. 7 
 8 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that a copy of this 9 
resolution be sent to the Mass Transit Administration of the Maryland Department of 10 
Transportation.   11 
 12 
 13 
 ADOPTED this ___ day of _______, 2013. 14 
 15 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 16 
 17 

EXPLANATION 18 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 19 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 20 
Underlining indicates amendments.  21 

Page 42



R-1-13  
Page 3

 
Policy Report 

 
R-1-13 

 
Filing of Grant Application with the Mass Transit Administration 

 
The proposed resolution would endorse the filing of an application with the Mass Transit 
Administration of the Maryland Department of Transportation for a Section 5303, 5304, 
5307, 5309, 5310, 5311, 5316, and/or 5317 grant under the Federal Transit Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  
 

Page 43



CITY COUNCIL OF THE 1 

City of Annapolis 2 

 3 

Resolution No. R-2-13 4 
 5 

Introduced by: Alderman Kirby 6 
 7 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Legislative referrals are subject to City Council action at the time of introduction  

and are reflected in the City Council’s adopted minutes 

First Reading Public Hearing Fiscal Impact Note 90 Day Rule 

1/14/13   4/14/13 

Referred to Referral Date Meeting Date Action Taken 

Housing and Human 
Welfare 

1/14/13   

 8 
A RESOLUTION concerning 9 

Support for Angela Wakhweya, M.D. to Continue Her Service as the Anne Arundel County 10 
Health Officer 11 

FOR the purpose of expressing the sense of the Annapolis City Council to support Angela 12 
Wakhweya, M.D. in continuing her service as the Anne Arundel County Health Officer. 13 

WHEREAS, Dr. Wakhweya has served as Health Officer of Anne Arundel County since 14 
October 2011; and 15 

 16 
WHEREAS, Dr. Wakhweya is the first African-American and first African-American woman 17 

to hold this position in the Anne Arundel County Department of Health’s 81 18 
year history; and 19 
 20 

WHEREAS, as part of the State Health Improvement Process (“SHIP”), she helped form the 21 
Healthy Anne Arundel Coalition that fosters collaboration between public and 22 
private sector partners to implement actionable strategies to improve public 23 
health in Anne Arundel County; and 24 

 25 
WHEREAS, Dr. Wakhweya has highlighted and reviewed evidence-based strategies to 26 

reduce health related disparities that exist in Anne Arundel County and has 27 
been at the forefront of the dialogue to improve disparities among African-28 
Americans and Hispanics that have persisted for decades; and 29 

 30 
WHEREAS, she has been instrumental in streamlining communication protocols related to 31 

emergency preparedness and response resulting in a steady improvement in 32 
response capability of the health department by learning from the response to 33 
the Derecho event and Super Storm Sandy and infectious disease outbreaks; 34 
and 35 

 36 
WHEREAS, Dr. Wakhweya has met with City officials to discuss ways in which she can 37 

support the City of Annapolis and has visited the City of Annapolis Emergency 38 

Page 44



R-2-13 
Page 2 

Command Center to assess ways in which coordination of City and County 1 
assets can be deployed collaboratively to mitigate impact on City and County 2 
residents prior, during and in the aftermath of emergencies; and 3 

 4 
WHEREAS,  Dr. Wakhweya previously served as Deputy Director at the Infectious Disease 5 

and Environmental Health Administration (IDEHA), Maryland Department of 6 
Health and Mental Hygiene in Baltimore, Maryland and worked in partnership 7 
with a cross-section of leadership in managing the state’s efforts to reduce the 8 
transmission of infectious diseases, help impacted persons live longer, 9 
healthier lives; and, protect individuals and communities during emergencies 10 
and from environmental health hazards; and 11 

 12 
WHEREAS, Dr. Wakhweya has a Doctor of Medicine degree from Makerere University 13 

Medical School in Kampala, Uganda, and a Master of Science in Economics 14 
jointly awarded by the London School of Economics and Political Science, and 15 
the London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine, University of London; 16 
and 17 

 18 
WHEREAS,  the Health-General Article of the State Code, § 3-302(f), provides that the 19 

health officer for a county serves at the pleasure of the "governing body" of the 20 
county and the Secretary of the Maryland Department of Health and Mental 21 
Hygiene; and 22 

 23 
WHEREAS,  the Health-General Article of the State Code, § 3-302(g), further provides that 24 

the health officer may only be removed from office by the Secretary with the 25 
concurrence of the governing body; and 26 

 27 
WHEREAS,  the Anne Arundel Charter, § 1014, provides that any action to be taken by the 28 

"governing body" of the County shall be taken by the County Executive and 29 
referred to the County Council for confirmation; and  30 

 31 
WHEREAS,  Secretary Joshua M. Sharfstein, M.D., of the Maryland Department of Health 32 

and Mental Hygiene seeks the removal of Anne Arundel County Health Officer 33 
Angela M. Wakhweya, M.D., an action in which Anne Arundel County 34 
Executive John R. Leopold concurs and for which County Executive Leopold 35 
seeks confirmation by the County Council through Resolution No. 5-13; and 36 

 37 
WHEREAS, the County Council of Anne Arundel County considered Resolution No. 5-13 on 38 

January 7, 2013; and 39 
 40 
WHEREAS, the County Council of Anne Arundel County is scheduled to continue its public 41 

hearing and vote on Resolution No. 5-13 on January 22, 2013. 42 
 43 
 44 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that the 45 
Annapolis City Council supports Angela Wakhweya, M.D. in continuing her service as the Anne 46 
Arundel County Health Officer. 47 

 48 
 49 

Page 45



R-2-13 
Page 3 

AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL that a copy of this 1 
Resolution be sent to Secretary Joshua M. Sharfstein, M.D., County Executive John R. Leopold, 2 
and Angela M. Wakhweya, M.D. 3 
 4 
 5 

ADOPTED this   day of   ,   . 6 
 7 
 8 

ATTEST:  THE ANNAPOLIS CITY COUNCIL 

 BY  

Regina C. Watkins-Eldridge, MMC, City Clerk  Joshua J. Cohen, Mayor 

 9 
 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 

EXPLANATION 14 
CAPITAL LETTERS indicate matter added to existing law. 15 

[brackets] indicate matter stricken from existing law. 16 
Underlining indicates amendments.  17 

 18 

Page 46



 
Policy Report 

 
R-2-13 

 
Support for Angela Wakhweya, M.D. to Continue Her Service as the Anne Arundel 

County Health Officer 

 
The proposed resolution would express the sense of the Annapolis City Council to 
support Angela Wakhweya, M.D. in continuing her service as the Anne Arundel County 
Health Officer. 

 
 
 
Prepared by Jessica Cowles, Legislative and Policy Analyst in the City of Annapolis 
Office of Law at JCCowles@annapolis.gov or 410.263.1184.  

 

Page 47



UPDATED & Approved – January 14, 2013 
STANDING COMMITTEES 

2009 – 2013  
 City Code Section 2.12.020D Powers and duties 

 
The Mayor shall recommend to the City Council all appointments to aldermanic standing committees but all 
appointments shall be confirmed by a majority of the City Council. 
 
C ECONOMIC MATTERS COMMITTEE 
 
The Economic Matters Committee shall consider matters affecting the economy of the City; make recommendations to 
the City Council on issues relating to the operation of the Market house and the regulation of the City Dock; study, 
independently and with private historic preservation organizations, issues concerning historic structures in the City; and 
study, consider and make recommendations regarding issues of cable television service to the City of Annapolis and its 
citizens. The Economic Matters Committee shall review all proposed amendments to Title 7 (Business Licenses, Taxes 
and Regulations) and Title 17 (Buildings and Construction) of this code. 

 
Alderman Frederick M. Paone 

Alderwoman Sheila M. Finlayson 
Alderman Ian Pfeiffer 

 
C ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS COMMITTEE 
 
The Environmental Matters Committee shall consider matters affecting the natural environment of the City. The 
Environmental Matters Committee shall review all proposed amendments to Title 14 (Streets, Sidewalks and Public 
Places), Title 15 (Harbors and Waterfront Areas), and Title 16 (Public Services) of this code. 
 

Alderman Frederick M. Paone 
Alderman Jared S. Littmann 

Alderman Ian Pfeiffer 
 

C FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

The Finance Committee shall handle all matters relating to the review of the budget and continuous surveillance of the 
budget. The Finance Committee shall have power to review and make recommendations with regard to the Mayor's 
annual operating budget and shall submit recommendations with regard to the budget to the City Council not later than 
the second Monday in May of each year. The Finance Committee shall review all proposed amendments to Title 6 
(Revenue and Finance) of this code. 
 

Alderman Richard E. Israel 
Alderwoman Shelia M. Finlayson 

Alderman Ross H. Arnett, III 
 
C HOUSING AND HUMAN WELFARE COMMITTEE 
 
The Housing and Human Welfare Committee shall consider issues of housing and matters affecting the general health, 
welfare and quality of life of the residents of the City. The Housing and Human Welfare Committee shall review all 
proposed amendments to Title 8 (Animals), Title 10 (Health and Safety), and Title 18 (Landlord and Tenant Relations) 
of this code. 
 

Alderwoman Classie G. Hoyle 
Alderman Jared S. Littman 

Alderman Kenneth A. Kirby 
 
C PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE        
 
The Public Safety Committee shall consider matters affecting public safety in the City. The Public Safety Committee 
shall review all proposed amendments to Title 11 (Public Peace, Morals and Welfare) and Title 12, (Vehicles and 
Traffic) of this code. 
 

Alderman Frederick M. Paone 
Alderwoman Sheila M. Finlayson 

Alderman Kenneth A. Kirby 
 

C RULES AND CITY GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE 
 
The Rules and City Government Committee shall review and consider all proposed amendments to the Charter and all 
proposed amendments to Title 1 (General Provisions), Title 2 (Administration), Title 3 (Personnel), Title 4 (Elections), 
Title 20 (Subdivisions), Title 21 (Planning and Zoning) and Title 22 (Adequate Public Facilities) of this code. 
 

Alderman Richard E. Israel 
Alderwoman Classie G. Hoyle 
Alderman Ross H. Arnett, III  

 
C TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE   

 
The Transportation Committee shall consider matters affecting parking, public transportation, and vehicular traffic.  The 
Transportation Committee shall review all proposed amendments to Title 12 (Vehicles and Traffic), Title 14 (Streets, 
Sidewalks and Public Places), and Title 22 (Adequate Public Facilities) of this Code. 

 
Alderman Kenneth A. Kirby 

Alderman Ian Pfeiffer 
Alderman Ross H. Arnett, III 

Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65


	1-14-13 Agenda
	1-14-13 Public Hearing
	December Minutes 
	O-44-12 Boat Show 2013 Spring
	O-44-12 Fiscal Impact Note
	O-44-12 Cohen Amendment
	O-1-13 Exempt Emp
	R-1-13 MTA Grant
	R-2-13 AACo Health Officer
	Standing Committee Assignments
	1-14-13 Appointments



